
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

VIA TELECONFERENCE 
Monday, February 1, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

Link to access meeting via teleconference or by phone from your computer, tablet or smartphone: 
https://www.gotomeet.me/CityofDawsonville/city-council-regular-meeting-9 
 

You can also dial in using your phone. 
United States: +1 (571) 317-3112 
 

Access Code: 555-018-485 
 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements  
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held January 19, 2021 

b. Approve IGA with Dawson County for the 2021 Municipal Election 
c. Approve Change to Financial Policy To Allow Direct Deposit 

 

PUBLIC HEARING      
 

8. ZA-C2100098: Tanco Investments, LLC has requested a zoning amendment for TMP D03 012 
Located at 315 Highway 9 North and TMP D03 013 Located at 373 Highway 9 North consisting of 
4.09 acres from HB (Highway Business District) to R6 (Multiple-Family Residential District).  Public 
Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on January 11, 2021 and City Council on February 1, 2021.  
City Council for a decision on February 15, 2021. 

 

9. VA- C2100098: Tanco Investments, LLC has requested the following variances for TMP D03 012 
Located at 315 Highway 9 North and TMP D03 013 Located at 373 Highway 9 North for lot width on 
2,5,8,11, 14, 17, 20 and 23 will be reduced from 28’ feet to 22' wide. Public Hearing Dates:  Planning 
Commission on January 11, 2021 and City Council on February 1, 2021.  City Council for a decision 
on February 15, 2021. 

 

BUSINESS      

10. An Ordinance To Amend Section 2-110 To Provide For Revised Connection Fee For A Water Line 
For Fire Suppression And Firefighting; And For Other Purposes. (First Reading: February 1, 2021; 
Second Reading and Adoption: February 15, 2021) 

11. Recognition of Former Dawson County Chamber of Commerce President 
12.  Nextsite Agreement 

13.  2021 Dawsonville History Museum Lease 

14.  Independent Contractor Agreement    
 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION IF NEEDED:  Pending or Potential Litigation, Real Estate Acquisition and/or Personnel 
 

     ADJOURNMENT   
 
 
 

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, February 15, 2021 
 
 

 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/01/2021     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held January 19, 2021 

b. Approve IGA with Dawson County for the 2021 Municipal Election 
c. Approve Change to Financial Policy To Allow Direct Deposit 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/01/2021     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 
 

• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD ON JANUARY 19, 2021 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 







      

  SUBJECT:    APPROVE IGA WITH DAWSON COUNTY FOR THE 2021 MUNICIPAL ELECTION 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/01/2021  

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT # 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

TO REQUEST APPROVAL FOR THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH 
DAWSON COUNTY TO CONDUCT THE 2021 MUNICIPAL ELECTION 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
• IGA APPROVED BY LEGAL, DC BOC AND BOARD OF ELECTIONS
• GENERAL ELECTION IS FOR COUNCILMEMBER POST #2 AND POST #4
• BOARD HAS PREVIOUSLY ASSISTED THE CITY WITH ELECTIONS
• QUALIFYING FEES WERE SET AND ADVERTISED

     OPTIONS: 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 

     REQUESTED BY:      Beverly Banister, City Clerk  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR 

AGENDA ITEM #    7b 















                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE CHANGE TO FINANCIAL POLICY TO ALLOW DIRECT DEPOSIT 

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/01/2020    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO APPROVE VERBIAGE CHANGE TO THE FINANCIAL POLICY  
   SECTION IX, G. CELLPHONE POLICY AND EXPENDITURE REIMBURSEMENT TO READ  
 

   “THIS EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT SHALL BE PAID MONTHLY VIA DIRECT DEPOSIT” 
 

     CURRENT VERBIAGE READS “THIS EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT SHALL BE PAID 
MONTHLY BY CHECK AND NOT AS PART OF PAYROLL” 

 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• CURRENT PROCESS TO REIMBURSE CELLPHONE EXPENDITURES IS CUMBERSOME 
AND COSTLY 

• TWENTY-THREE CHECKS PER MONTH ARE BEING PRINTED, SIGNED AND RECONCILED 
• PROCESS FOR DIRECT DEPOSIT WILL BE HANDLED THROUGH OUR PAYROLL SERVICE 

ENTERED AS A REIMBURSEMENT LINE ITEM (NON-TAXABLE).  THIS WILL SAVE 
SIGNIFICANT TIME AND MONEY.    

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Beverly Banister, City Clerk  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7c     
 

 

 



G. Cellphone Policy and Expenditure Reimbursement 
 
There will be no City provided cellphones for any elected officials or employees.  Elected officials 
and employees whose job demands that they be on call or otherwise work outside the office shall 
be eligible for a monthly expense reimbursement toward their personal cellphone costs in the 
amount of $60 per month or such future amount that the Council may adopt by resolution.  This 
expense reimbursement shall be paid monthly by check and not as part of payroll.  This expense 
reimbursement shall be paid monthly via direct deposit.  

 
H. Payroll Policy 

 
 

The employee/official payroll shall be submitted to the payroll service selected by the City 
Manager each pay period by the Human Resources (HR).  The selected payroll service shall be 
responsible for filing all payroll tax returns and issuing all W-2 statements on behalf of the City.  
The HR and a backup employee assigned by the City Manager only shall have access to the 
payroll software.  The City Manager shall approve in writing the payroll submitted and any 
changes therein will be initialed by both HR and the City Manager.  Time cards are to be signed 
by the employee and approved by management.  Overtime must be approved by the department 
head and City Manager.  Approved time cards need to be submitted timely to HR in order for 
payroll to be processed.  The Finance Administrator is responsible for posting the payroll 
register from the payroll service company into the financial software.  HR is responsible for 
updating and reconciling the paid time off schedule for all the employees. 

 
I. EFT Payments/Bank Transfers 

 
 

All direct debits or other electronic funds transfers (“EFT”) shall be initiated by the Clerk/Finance 
Administrator or a designee (employee) and approved by the City Manager or Mayor 
(supervisor).  A printout of the same with the signatures or initials of the employee and the 
supervisor shall be kept by the Clerk for the period of time required by the City’s document 
retention policy. 

 
J. Computer Backup 

 
 

All City financial records shall be maintained to the extent possible on the City’s computer 
system. The City’s computer system shall be backed up off-site or through a web-based backup 
on a daily basis so that the same may easily be restored in the event of a computer failure or 
other disaster. The City Clerk shall maintain the list of passwords for the accounting software, 
access to programs and data and is responsible for reliable systems that include appropriated 
data backup and recovery processes. 

 
K.  Shared Expenditures 

 
 
Insurance, payroll, rent, utilities and other shared expenditures will be allocated among the 
governmental funds and proprietary funds by the Finance Administrator and approved by the City 
Manager. 
 



PUBLIC HEARING































PUBLIC HEARING





















                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE AMENDMENT– CONNECTION FEE FOR FIRE LINE  
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/01/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:      FIRST READING  
  

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 2-110 TO PROVIDE FOR REVISED CONNECTION 
FEE FOR A WATER LINE FOR FIRE SUPPRESSION AND FIREFIGHTING; AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
FIRST READING: FEBRUARY 1, 2021; SECOND READING AND ADOPTION: FEBRUARY 15, 2021 

 
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
      
      
      
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
       
     
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
        
 
 

 
          REQUESTED BY:   David Picklesimer, Planning Director  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  10    
 

 

 







                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   RECOGNITION OF FORMER DAWSON COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

PRESIDENT  
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/01/2020    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO RECOGNIZE THE FORMER DAWSON COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE PRESIDENT, 
CHRISTIE MOORE 

 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
    

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   11     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:       NEXTSITE AGREEMENT        

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/01/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

    TO DETERMINE CONTINUATION OF NEXTSITE SERVICE – COST IS $5,000 ANNUALLY 
 
    
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

• COUNCIL APPROVED $5,000 FOR AN ANNUAL CONTRACT ON MARCH 18, 2019 AND 
CONTINUATION OF THE CONTRACT ON JUNE 15, 2020 
 

• AUTO RENEWAL OCCURS ON MAY 1, 2021 UNLESS COUNCIL TERMINATES THE 
AGREEMENT 

 
 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
     
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   12     
 

 

 































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   2021 DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM LEASE  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/01/2021    
   
  

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF THE 2021 DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM LEASE  
 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• COUNCILMEMBER TOLSON AND CITY MANAGER BOLZ RESEARCHED LEASING FEES 
PER MAYOR EASON’S REQUEST 

 

• ITEM POSTPONED TO THE 02/01/2021 AGENDA 
      

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 
 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   13     
 

 

 



1 
 

 SUB-LEASE AGREEMENT 

This Sub-Lease agreement (“Sub-Lease”) is entered into effective the 1st day of 

January, 2021 by and between THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, a Georgia municipal 

corporation, whose address is 415 Hwy. 53 East, Suite 100, Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 

(“Lessor”) and DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM , INC., a Georgia non-profit 

corporation d/b/a Georgia Racing Hall of Fame, (“Lessee”), whose address is 415 Hwy. 

53 East, Suite 110, Dawsonville, Georgia 30534. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Lessor entered into a lease-purchase agreement (“City Lease”) 

with the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Dawsonville, for the lease-

purchase of certain property and facilities (“Premises”) located at 415 Hwy. 53 East, 

Dawsonville, Georgia 30534, which is known as the City Hall/Dawsonville Municipal 

Complex; and 

WHEREAS, the Premises includes several tenant spaces, including a museum and 

a retail/manufacturing space, of which the museum space is available for sub-lease and 

suitable for Lessee’s use; and 

WHEREAS, the Lessor desires to sub-lease the museum space, as fully depicted in 

Exhibit “A” attached hereto and fully incorporated herein (“Museum Space”), to Lessee 

for the operation by Lessee of the Georgia Racing Hall of Fame, which will be in general 

open to the public, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the City Lease. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and 

obligations set forth herein and in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other good 

and valuable consideration mutually exchanged this date between parties hereto, the 



2 
 

receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as 

follows: 

1. Premises and Use. Lessee shall be permitted to occupy and utilize the areas of 

the Premises depicted in Exhibit A, otherwise known as the Museum Space, for the 

purpose of operating the Georgia Racing Hall of Fame Museum, which shall be open to 

the public and maintain business hours as deemed appropriate by Lessee, so long as, such 

operations do not materially interfere with the business and operations of the City of 

Dawsonville.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Lessor shall be 

permitted at no cost to Lessor to use the Alleyway, Men’s and Women’s Bathrooms and 

the Conference Room depicted upon Exhibit A for City sponsored events so long as said 

use does not materially interfere with the Lessee’s reasonable use of these areas. 

2. Subject to City Lease. Lessee expressly acknowledges and understands the 

terms and conditions of the City Lease, and agrees that Lessee shall be subject to the terms 

and conditions set forth in the City Lease, which terms are expressly incorporated into 

this Sub-Lease, unless otherwise expressly stated herein.  

3. Sub-Lease Term. This Sub-Lease shall commence on January 1, 2020, for the 

period of twelve months (“Lease Term”) terminating on December 31, 2020. The Sub-

Lease Term is NOT subject to an automatic renewal. This Sub-Lease shall automatically 

terminate, upon ninety (90) days prior notice from the Lessor, in the event that the City 

Lease is terminated prior to the expiration of the current Sub-Lease Term.   

4. Rent. Lessee covenants and agrees to pay Lessor a rent amount as rent for the 

Museum Space during the Sub-Lease Term which will be as follows:  

A. Lessee will pay to Lessor Base Rent in the amount of $250.00 (two hundred and 

fifty and no/100 dollars) per month for the Museum Space.  Rent will be due and 



3 
 

payable by the 5th day of every month, and if not actually received by the City by 

the 10th of the month the rental payment shall be late. For any late payment 

received after the 10th of the month Lessee shall pay to the City a 5% penalty. 

Penalty payment shall be due immediately and must be included with payment of 

past due rent. 

B.  Lessee will pay to Lessor Percentage Rent in such amount as is determined by 

subtracting base rent and utilities from gross receipts and multiplying that difference by 

15% (fifteen percent).  Percentage rent may be summarized by the following formula: 

 (Gross Receipts – (Base Rent + Utilities)) * 15% = Percentage Rent 
 

C.  The payments referred to in Paragraph 4, Subparagraphs A and B shall be collectively 

referred to as “Rent.”  Rent will be due and payable by the 5th day of every month, and if 

not actually received by the City by the 10th of the month the rental payment shall be 

late. For any late payment received after the 10th of the month Lessee shall pay to the 

City a 5% penalty. Penalty payment shall be due immediately and must be included with 

payment of past due rent. 

5. Parking. Lessee and its employees shall have the right to use the public parking 

spaces or parking areas near or adjacent to the City Hall/Dawsonville Municipal Complex. 

All such parking shall be on a nonexclusive, non-assigned basis. Lessee shall not use or 

permit its employees or invitees to use any spaces which have been specifically reserved 

by Lessor to other tenants or for such other uses as have been designated as being 

restricted to certain uses. Lessee shall at all times comply and cause its employees and 

invitees to comply with any parking rules and regulations as Lessor may from time to time 

reasonably adopt. At no time will Lessee or its employees use any parking spaces for 



4 
 

storage or containers of any type or description. At no time will Lessee, its employees, or 

its customers use areas not specifically designated for parking as parking spots or areas, 

or for storage. Lessor assumes no liability or risk for any damage that may occur to the 

vehicles or other property of Lessee, its employees, customers or others in any parking 

area or common area. 

6. Storage, Store Fronts, and Unpermitted Uses/Activities. Lessee agrees to 

maintain the Museum Space in a clean condition. Lessee agrees to not use the Museum 

Space as a long-term storage facility for items, except in areas specifically designated for 

the purpose of storage, such as closets. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee shall have 

the right to store items necessary for the proper operation of the Museum for a period of 

time not to exceed three (3) business days. However, such storage shall not impede, 

obstruct, or in any way interfere with the normal operations of the City and/or any other 

tenants or visitors to the Premises. At no time will Lessee store any item that is 

unnecessary for the proper operation of its business within the Museum Space or the 

parking area. 

7. Insurance and other charges. Lessee agrees to and shall pay for general 

liability insurance and shall name the Lessor as certificate holder or additional insured 

under the policy of insurance. Lessee shall keep the general liability policy in full force 

and affect for the full Sub-Lease Term with coverage in the amount of at least $1 million 

per person / $2 million per occurrence. Lessee is responsible for all other forms of 

insurance (i.e. workers comp, etc.) as may be required by law, except as may be expressly 

assumed by Lessor in writing.  

8. Improvements. To the extent Lessee desires to modify, change or improve the 

Museum Space for Lessee’s intended use, all such costs shall be borne by Lessee, and no 



5 
 

such costs shall be the responsibility of Lessor. Any plans for modifications or 

improvements must be presented to and approved in writing by Lessor prior to initiation 

of any change, modification or construction. 

9. Utilities. Lessee is responsible for all utilities associated with its occupation and 

use of the Museum Space including, but not limited to, water, sewer, natural gas, and 

electricity. Lessee shall install and maintain any necessary utility meters or sub-meters at 

Lessee’s expense.  

10. Garbage/Dumpster Removal Services.  Lessor shall provide access to Lessee 

to the Lessor’s dumpster located on the property adjacent to the Premises for Lessee’s 

normal weekly garbage usage.  Lessee shall not deposit any hazardous substances in the 

dumpster or place any garbage or trash outside of the dumpster at any time.  All garbage 

and trash from Lessee’s use of the Premises shall be hauled to and deposited in the 

dumpster by Lessee on at least a weekly basis.  

11. Pest Control. Lessee, at its cost, shall at all times keep the Premises free of pests. 

Lessor may elect to implement a program of pest control and, in such event, Lessee hereby 

grants Lessor the right to enter the Premises and perform such spraying and/or 

inspections that Lessor deems appropriate, and Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for Lessee's 

share of the cost of such program. If Lessor does not elect to implement a pest control 

program, Lessee shall implement a program of pest control satisfactory to Lessor which 

may include, without limitation, (a) moving any furniture, fixtures, equipment, displays 

or inventory during inspections and spraying by Lessee's exterminator; and (b) 

maintaining the Premises in a clean, trash-free and sanitary condition. Lessee further 

acknowledges that Lessee's exterminator shall, in an environmentally safe way, perform 

inspections and/or spraying at least every month. If Lessee fails to promptly and fully 



6 
 

comply with this Section, Lessor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to enter the 

Premises to perform such spraying or inspections at Lessee's expense. Performance of 

such work by Lessor shall not constitute a waiver of Lessee’s default in failing to do the 

same and neither shall it entitle Lessee to any damages for any injury or inconvenience 

occasioned thereby nor to any abatement of rent. Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for any 

cost incurred by Lessor pursuant to this Section upon demand therefor. 

12. Security Deposit. Because of the relationship between Lessor and Lessee and 

Lessee’s status as a non-profit corporation operating a museum for the benefit of the 

general public, no Security Deposit shall be required from Lessee for this Sub-Lease.   

13. Binding Effect and Severability. The provisions of this Sub-Lease shall be 

binding upon and inure to the benefit of both parties and their respective successors and 

assigns. If any provision of this Sub-Lease or any application thereof shall be invalid or 

unenforceable, the remainder of this Sub-Lease and any other application of such 

provision shall not be affected thereby. 

14. Quiet Enjoyment. Upon due performance by Lessee of its covenants and 

agreements under this Sub-Lease, Lessor covenants that Lessee shall and may at all times 

peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the Museum Space during the Sub-Lease 

Term.  

15. Headings. The Section headings are for convenience and reference only and shall 

not be used to limit or otherwise affect the meaning of any provision of this Sub-Lease. 

16. Counterparts. This Sub-Lease may be simultaneously executed in two or more 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed a fully enforceable original but all of which 

together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

17. Governing law, Venue and Jurisdiction. This Sub-Lease shall be construed 



7 
 

in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Georgia. Both parties hereby 

consent to jurisdiction and venue in Dawson County, Georgia in any action brought to 

enforce any provision of this Sub-Lease. 

18. Relationship of parties. Lessor and Lessee shall not be considered or deemed 

to be joint venturers or partners and neither shall have the power to bind or obligate the 

other except as set forth herein.  In the event  that Lessor engages  a person or entity for 

the purpose of providing management related to  Lessee  and Lessee’s use of the Museum 

Space, such shall not change the relationship of the parties or anything in this Paragraph 

18.  The foregoing notwithstanding, the continued  cooperation between Lessor, Lessee 

and any such individual or entity as determined in Lessor’s discretion is a material term 

of this lease, and the lack of such cooperation may be grounds for termination of this 

Lease Agreement.

19. Default. Lessee shall be in default if it fails to pay any rent or any other obligation 

when due to Lessor or fails to comply with any of the requirements of this Sub-Lease 

applicable to Lessee, including but not limited to the requirement to work in conjunction 

with any person or entity engaged by Lessor for management of the Museum Space, 

compliance with which is determined in Lessor’s discretion. In the event Lessee defaults, 

Lessor may terminate this Sub-Lease and pursue such remedies as are allowed by law. 

Included among these remedies shall be the right of Lessor to recover all rents owed under 

the Sub-Lease for the unexpired portion of the Sub-Lease Term. Upon a default and prior 

to exercising any remedy hereunder or allowed by law, Lessor shall provide Lessee written 

notice of the default and of Lessor’s intent to exercise remedies unless the default is cured 

within ten (10) days following receipt of the notice of default. Should Lessee fail to cure 

the default within ten (10) days following receipt of the notice of default, Lessor will be 



8 
 

immediately entitled to take possession of the Museum Space. Lessee waives any further 

right to notice prior to Lessor pursuing remedies other than those contained herein. 

Lessor shall be in default if it fails to comply with any of the requirements of this 

Sub-Lease applicable to Lessor. In the event Lessor defaults, Lessee’s sole and exclusive 

remedy shall be to terminate this Sub-Lease without further recourse against Lessor. 

Prior to exercising that remedy Lessee shall provide Lessor with written notice of the 

default and of Lessee’s intent to exercise its remedy unless the default is cured within ten 

(10) days following receipt of the notice of default. 

20. Construction. All terms used in this Sub-Lease, regardless of the number or 

gender in which they are used, shall be deemed and construed to include any other 

number, singular or plural, and by other gender, masculine, feminine, or neuter, as the 

context or sense of this Sub-Lease or any section, subsection, or clause herein may require 

as if such terms had been fully and properly written in such number or gender. 

21. Modification. No changes, additions, or interlineations made to this Sub-Lease 

shall be binding unless initialed by both parties. 

22. Non-waiver. No delay or failure by either party to exercise any right under this 

Sub-Lease, and no partial or single exercise of that right, shall constitute a waiver of that 

or any other right, unless otherwise expressly provided herein. 

23. Time of essence. Time is expressly declared to be of the essence of this Sub-

Lease. 

24. Entire Agreement. This Sub-Lease supersedes all agreements previously made 

between the parties relating to its subject matter. There are no other understandings or 

agreements between them. 

 



9 
 

[execution on following page] 

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Sub-Lease effective as of the date first 

above written. 

 

LESSOR:  LESSEE: 
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE  DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM, 

INC.  
 
 
 
___________________________  ___________________________ 
By: Mike Eason, Mayor  By:  
 



Exhibit "A"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/01/2021    
   
  

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF THE INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
CONCERNING A DIRECTOR FOR THE DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM 

 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

      

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 
 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   14     
 

 

 



 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

     
 AGREEMENT dated the ________ day of _______________, 2021, between The City of 
Dawsonville, Georgia, a Georgia Municipal Corporation, with an office at 415 Highway 53 East, 
Dawsonville, Georgia, 30534, (the “City”), and ___________________________________, (the 
“Contractor”).  
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the Contractor and the Contractor is willing to accept 
such engagement, all on the terms hereinafter set forth;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. Scope of Contract. The City hereby engages the Contractor as its Director for the 

Dawsonville History Museum on the terms hereinafter set forth and the Contractor hereby 
accepts such engagement.  The engagement shall last for a term of twelve months from 
_______________, to _______________, provided, however, that the Contract shall 
automatically renew for a successive twelve months unless notice is provided by either the 
City or Contractor that the Contract will not be renewed at least forty-five (45) days prior 
to its expiration, or it is otherwise terminated as provided herein.  The Contract may renew 
as described in the previous sentence for a total of four renewals after the expiration of the 
initial term.  The provisions of this Agreement will continue to apply for as long as the 
Contractor remains engaged by the City, and certain provisions will, where they expressly 
provide, continue to apply after termination of the Contractor's engagement with the City.   
 

2. Duties. The Contractor will render services and will fulfill the obligations contained in the 
attached Exhibit “A” incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this express reference.  
Contractor may receive guidance from the Board of Directors of the Georgia Racing Hall 
of Fame, but shall in general exercise independence in the manners and methods of 
fulfilling the requirements of Exhibit “A.”  To the extent necessary, Contractor shall 
receive final direction to the extent necessary from the City Manager.  

 
3. Loyalty. The Contractor will not (i) act for Contractor’s own account in any manner which 

is competitive with any of the business of the Dawsonville History Museum  (“Museum”) 
or which would interfere with the performance of Contractor’s duties under this 
Agreement, or (ii) serve as an officer, director or employee of or perform services for any 
other business entity which is competitive with or conflicts with the Museum.  

 
4. Compensation. 

 
4.1 Salary.  The City will pay the Contractor at the rate of $________  per year 

commencing on the ____ day of ___________, 2021 which will be payable in 
periodic equal installments.  For the initial term the payment to Contractor shall be 
prorated. Thereafter the City may review the Contractor’s compensation from time 



to time based on the policies of the City.  The Contractor will not be entitled to 
additional compensation beyond that called for herein, and is not an “employee” 
under the Fair Labor Standards Act. 
 

5. Expenses.  Any and all expenses and expenditures incurred by Contractor shall be in 
conformity with the City’s procurement policy in effect at the time the expenses are 
incurred.  The foregoing notwithstanding, the Contractor may submit to the city an invoice 
on an annual basis for the provision of an insurance policy to insure Contractor with respect 
to liability for damages to persons or property based on acts and/or omissions arising out 
of or relating to Contractor’s service pursuant to this Contract. 

 
6. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated immediately by the City upon the 

occurrence of any one of the following events: 
 

(a) Contractor’s death or legal incapacity; 
 

(b) Contractor’s incapacity or inability to perform Contractor’s services as 
set forth in this Agreement; 

 
(c) Contractor is guilty of fraud, dishonesty, or other acts of misconduct in 

the rendering of services on behalf of the City; or 
 

(d) Contractor fails or refuses to faithfully or diligently perform the 
provisions of this agreement. 

 
This Agreement may be terminated immediately by the Contractor upon the 

occurrence of any one of the following events: 
 

(a) The City’s failure to remit payment when due. 
 

(b) The City’s failure to perform any of its obligations as set forth in 
this Agreement. 

 
(c) The City’s financial insolvency. 

 
7. Results of the Contractor’s Services. 

 
7.1 The City will be entitled to and will own all the results and proceeds of the 

Contractor’s services under this Agreement, which pertain to, arise out of or are 
related to the Contractor’s job duties in Exhibit A.  The same shall be the sole and 
exclusive property of the City; and the Contractor will not have any right, title or 
interest of any nature or kind therein. 
 

7.2 The Contractor acknowledges that the violation of any of the provisions of §7.1 
will cause irreparable loss and harm to the City which cannot be reasonably or 
adequately compensated by damages in an action at law, and, accordingly, that the 



City will be entitled, without posting bond or other security, to injunctive and other 
equitable relief to enforce the provisions of that Section; but no action for any such 
relief shall be deemed to waive the right of the City to an action for damages.  
 

8. Use of Contractor’s Name, Etc. The City is hereby granted the right during the term of 
Contractor’s engagement to make use of and to permit others to make use of the 
Contractor’s name, pictures, photographs, and other likenesses, and voice, in connection 
with the advertising, publicity and exploitation of any products, or in connection with the 
use or implementation of any of the Contractor’s services hereunder or the proceeds 
thereof. This right shall continue in perpetuity as a non-exclusive and non-compensable 
right after termination of Contractor’s engagement for any reason whatsoever including, 
without limitation, termination by either party for cause or wrongful termination by either 
party. In no event, however, shall the Contractor, directly or indirectly, be represented as 
endorsing any product or commodity without the Contractor’s written consent.  
 

9. Governing Law; Remedies. 
 
9.1 This Agreement has been executed in the State of Georgia and shall be governed 

by and construed in all respects in accordance with the law of the State of Georgia.  
 

9.2 Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any dispute or claim 
arising under or with respect to this Agreement or any breach or alleged breach 
hereof shall be first submitted to non-binding mediation before being subject to 
litigation which litigation must be conducted in the Superior Court of Dawson 
County, State of Georgia.   
 

9.3 The Parties will also have such other legal remedies as may be appropriate under 
the circumstance including, inter alia, recovery of damages occasioned by a breach. 
The Parties’ rights and remedies are cumulative and the exercise or enforcement of 
any one or more of them will not preclude the City from exercising or enforcing 
any other right or remedy.  

 
10. Severability of Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement or the application of any 

such provision to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of this 
Agreement, and the application of such provision other than to the extent it is held invalid, 
will not be invalidated or affected thereby.  

 
11. Waiver. No failure by a Party to insist upon the strict performance of any term or condition 

of this Agreement or to exercise any right or remedy available to it will constitute a waiver. 
No breach or default of any provision of this Agreement will be waived, altered or 
modified, and the Parties may not waive any rights, except by a written instrument executed 
by them. No waiver of any breach or default will affect or alter any term or condition of 
this Agreement, and such term or condition will continue in full force and effect with 
respect to any other then existing or subsequent breach or default thereof.  
 

12. Miscellaneous. 



 
12.1 This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed by the 

City and the Contractor.  
 

12.2 This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties and their respective successors 
and assigns. The City may, without the Contractor’s consent, transfer or assign any 
of its rights and obligations under this Agreement to any corporation or other entity 
which, directly or indirectly, controls or is controlled by the City or is under 
common control with the City or to any corporation or other entity succeeding to 
all or a substantial portion of the City's business and assets, provided that the City 
shall not be released from any of its obligations under this Agreement, and provided 
further that any such transferee or assignee agrees in writing to assume all the 
obligations of the City hereunder. Except as provided above, neither the City nor 
the Contractor may, without the other's prior written consent, transfer or assign any 
of its or Contractor’s rights or obligations under this Agreement, and any such 
transfer or assignment or attempt thereof without such consent shall be null and 
void.  
 

12.3 All notices under or in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and may 
be delivered personally or sent by mail to the parties at their addresses set forth 
below or to such other addresses as to which notice is given:  

 
1.  If to the City:  

    City of Dawsonville, Georgia 
  Attn: Bob Bolz, City Manager 
  415 Hwy 53 East 
  Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 
     
   2.  If to the Contractor:  
    _____________________________ 
    _____________________________ 
    _____________________________ 
    _____________________________ 
     
    Notice will be deemed given on receipt.  
 

12.4 Upon termination of the Contractor’s relationship with the City, Contractor shall 
promptly deliver to the City all equipment, materials, tools, correspondence, 
manuals, orders, letters, notes, notebooks, reports, programs, proposals and any 
documents and copies concerning the Museum’s customers, exhibitors, or 
concerning products or processes used by the Museum and, without limiting the 
foregoing, will promptly deliver to the City any and all other documents or material 
containing or constituting confidential information. 
 

12.5 The Contractor may not assign, pledge, or encumber any of the rights or obligations 
hereunder without the written consent of the City. 



 
12.6 The parties agree that this Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, and in that event, each counterpart shall be deemed a complete 
original and be enforceable without reference to any other counterpart. 
 

12.7 Contractor and City represent and agree that each has reviewed all aspects of this 
Agreement, has carefully read and fully understands all provisions of this 
Agreement, and is voluntarily entering into this Agreement.  Each party represents 
and agrees that such party has had the opportunity to review any and all aspects of 
this Agreement with legal, tax, or other adviser(s) of such party’s choice before 
executing this Agreement. 
 

12.8 The language contained herein shall be deemed to be that approved by all parties 
hereto and no rule of strict construction shall be applied against any party hereto. 

 
12.9 Section headings are for purposes of convenient reference only and will not affect 

the meaning or interpretation of any provision of this Agreement.  
 

12.10 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties and supersedes any 
and all prior agreements or understandings between them.  

 
12.11 The City shall take steps in an attempt to have Contractor insured for acts or 

omissions committed in conjunction with the performance of Contractor’s 
obligations under this Contract either through the City’s own policy of insurance or 
through the policy of insurance of the Dawsonville History Museum. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day 
and year first above written.  
 
 
City of Dawsonville, Georgia 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Michael Eason, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 

Contractor 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Cindy Elliott 
 
Witness: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 

 



EXHIBIT “A”  
 

JOB DESCRIPTION 

Title: Director, Dawsonville History Museum  

FLSA Status: Exempt 

Effective Date: 

GENERAL PURPOSE 

Under general supervision of the City Manager and with direction from the Board of Directors of the 
Dawsonville History Museum, which includes the Georgia Racing Hall of Fame, this position supervises 
the operation of the museum and related functions. 

DUTIES 

• Coordinates with staff and volunteers for operation of the museum. 
• Plans, coordinates and promotes museum heritage programs and events. 
• Oversees the Dawsonville History Museum related operations, including, historic preservation 

and database management, museum operation, facility rental, public education, and local 
history research. 

• With the Boards approval, carryout related revenue management for museum ticket sales, 
facility rental, museum retail efforts, and online sales. 

• Develops and manages museum marketing efforts to improve public awareness and recognition 
of the facility and what it offers. 

• Researches and updates current cultural and heritage program resources and interests within 
the community. 

• Develop and manage a plan for strategic organization and visitor experience. 
• Develop and manage a redefined vision, and more effective use of existing physical space to 

enhance the present and future mission of the museum. 
• Manage an assessment, general upgrade, ongoing maintenance and rotation of exhibits. 
• Develop and manage a plan assuring the most flexibility of the interior space to support events 

and programs as well as new programs and traveling exhibits. 
• Develop and as funding is available, manage a realistic plan for current and future operations, 

such as, staffing, maintenance, expenses, etc. 
• Develop,  implement, and manage, as funding is available, capital outlay projects, such as new 

construction, display renovations, and development of exhibits, new and existing. 
• With the approval of the Board, prepares and manages annual budgets for the Dawsonville 

History Museum.  
• Prepares and issues appropriate public information material, including, press releases, 

newsletters, brochures, posters, flyers, etc. 
• Manages museum website.  
• When called upon, books and contracts artists for performances, visual and literary arts, within 

the museum and is responsible for providing technical assistance with programs. 
• Develops and administers grants from and to the museum  and other public and private 

agencies. 



EXHIBIT “A”  
 

• Coordinates fundraising and partnership programs for the museum with direction from the 
Board and through the City Manager. 

• Solicits volunteer support. 
• When called upon, suggest potential Board member appointments  for the Dawsonville History 

Museum Board of Directors, and attends the meetings when called upon. 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE 

Bachelor’s degree in Arts Administration, History or a closely related field plus three (3) years 
professional experience in arts administration at a public or private arts agency , museum or 
organization, or equivalent combination of education and experience.  
 
NECESSARY SKILLS AND ABILITIES  
 
Knowledge of:  
 

• Philosophy, principles and practices of the role of the local arts and heritage programs 
and the presentation of arts performances and events.  

• Philosophy, principles, and best practices of historic preservation and museum 
operations.  

• Practices and procedures for operation of a 501 (3) (C) or similar non-profit agency. 
• Practices and procedures of marketing, social media and public relations.  
• Budget planning, development, management, and control.  
• Public agency grant administration.  
• Principles and practices of fund raising.  

 
Ability to:  
 

• Plan, develop and administer activities for arts and heritage programs.  
• Advertise and market the city and its facilities and programs. 
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with members of the community. 
• Effectively communicate both orally and in writing.  
• Develop additional funding sources outside of general fund.  
• Keep accurate records and prepare comprehensive reports.  
• Plan and implement public art projects and history publications and products.  
• Supervise care of the City of Dawsonville and the History Museum collections.  
• Collaborate with independent local art agencies and provide training.  
• Develop program partnerships with the City of Dawsonville, school, businesses and 

community organizations.  
 




